
Agenda for a meeting of the Bradford South Area 
Committee to be held on Thursday, 28 October 2021 at 
5.00 pm in the Council Chamber, City Hall - City Hall, 
Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors

LABOUR CONSERVATIVE

Dodds
S Khan
T Hussain
Mukhtar
Thornton
Warburton
Wood

Bibby
J Clarke

Alternates:

LABOUR CONSERVATIVE

Berry
Ferriby
D Green
Jabar
Tait
Wainwright

Hargreaves
Majkowski

Notes:
 Please note that under the current circumstances only Members and Alternates on the 

Committee will receive paper copies of the agenda, however the agenda and reports can 
be viewed on the Councils agenda and minutes website five clear working days in 
advance of the meeting.

 Given the restrictions on room capacity, any Councillors and members of the public who 
wish to make a contribution at the meeting are asked to email 
yusuf.patel@bradford.gov.uk by mid-day on Tuesday 26 October 2021 and request to do 
so. You will then be advised on how you can participate in the meeting.  access to the 
meeting cannot be guaranteed if those wishing to attend do not register given the 
council must comply with the Covid regulations and guidance.

 On the day of the meeting you are encouraged to wear a suitable face covering (unless 
you are medically exempt) and adhere to social distancing.  Staff will be at hand to 
advise accordingly.  Participants may be asked to wait in a separate room if the capacity 
in the Council Chamber has been reached and they will be escorted back into the 
meeting as a when their item is considered by the Committee.

From: To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Yusuf Patel
Phone: 07970 411923
E-Mail: yusuf.patel@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

mailto:yusuf.patel@bradford.gov.uk


2

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34) 

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.

3.  MINUTES 

Recommended –

That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2021 be 
signed as a correct record (previously circulated).

(Yusuf Patel – 01274 434579)



3

4.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Yusuf Patel - 01274 434579)

5.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

To hear questions from electors within the District on any matter this is 
the responsibility of the Committee.  

Questions must be received in writing by the City Solicitor in 
Room 112, City Hall, Bradford, BD1 1HY, by mid-day on Tuesday 
26 October 2021.

(Yusuf Patel - 01274 434579)

B. BUSINESS ITEMS

6.  YOUTH SERVICE UPDATE - BRADFORD SOUTH 

The Strategic Director, Place will submit a report (Document “K”) 
which gives an update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the 
Bradford South Area in the past 12 months and outlines the direction of 
travel for the next 12 months.

Recommended –

That the work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford 
South Area as detailed in Document “K” be welcomed.

Overview & Scrutiny Area: Children’s Services

Mick Charlton - 01274 431155

1 - 16



4

7.  LOCALITY WORKING REVIEW: BRADFORD SOUTH APPROACH 
AND CREATING A LOCALITIES PLAN FOR THE AREA

At its meeting held on 30 September 2021, this Area Committee 
received a report from the Strategic Director Place (Document “I” 
resubmitted) which outlines 1) the District wide approach emerging 
from the Review, 2) considers the data available to support the process 
and 3) presents some options on how to develop the approach in 
Bradford South. The report:

Recommended –

(1) That the committee notes the Localities Review and implications 
for Bradford South Area Committee.

(2) That the Committee chooses one of the three approaches to 
develop a localities plan for Bradford South.

(3) That the Area Coordinator is asked to lead on the approach and 
develop an engagement plan, keep Councillors updated on 
progress and report back progress to the committee in March 
2022.

After considering the report the Area Committee resolved:

That the Chief Executive be invited to the next meeting of 
Bradford South Area Committee to respond to Councillors 
concerns about the implications of the Locality Review.

In line with the above resolution the Chief Executive will attend the 
meeting of the Area Committee.

Overview & Scrutiny Area: Corporate
(Mick Charlton - 01274 431155)

17 - 46

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



5



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Strategic Director, Place to the meeting of 
Bradford South Area Committee to be held on 28th 
October 2021

K

Subject:  

YOUTH SERVICE UPDATE – BRADFORD SOUTH.

Summary statement:

This report gives an update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford South Area in 
the past 12 months and outlines the direction of travel for the next 12 months.

The report outlines the following information:

 An overview of youth provision and a timeline of the Youth Services response to 
the Covid 19 pandemic.

 An update on how the Youth Service continues to respond to increased demand 
and complexity of need. 

 An introduction to the work of the Young Covid Recovery Ambassadors and their 
role in the community.

 An update on youth provision ward by ward and key developments.

Appendix A – Bradford South Youth Service Baseline Provision details the current 
provisions being delivered within the wards in Bradford South.  

Appendix B - Bradford Youth Service South Ward Update gives an overview of ward work
and developments

Jason Longhurst
Interim Strategic Director
Place

Portfolio:  

Neighbourhoods and Community Safety 

Report Contact: Mick Charlton 
Phone: (01274 431155)
E-mail: mick.charlton@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area: 

Children’s Services

Page 1

Agenda Item 6/

mailto:mick.charlton@bradford.gov.uk


Page 2



1. SUMMARY
1.1 This report gives an update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the   

Bradford South Area in 2020-21.
1.2 The report outlines the following information:

 An overview of youth provision and a timeline of the Youth Services response to 
the Covid 19 pandemic.

 An update on how the Youth Service continues to respond to increased demand 
and complexity of need. 

 An introduction to the work of the Young Covid Recovery Ambassadors and their 
role in the community.

 An update on youth provision ward by ward and key developments.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1 The Bradford Council Youth Service is part of the wider Bradford District Youth 

Offer that aims to ensure the provision of a range of activities and services that take 
place in safe spaces, where young people can develop a sense of belonging, 
socialise with their peers and develop relationships with adults they can trust. It 
recognises that with the right supportive relationships, strong ambitions and good 
opportunities all young people can realise their potential and be positive and active 
members of society.

2.2 The Youth Service vision statement is to work with partners to ensure that young 
people grow up healthy, happy, informed and aspiring; proud of who they are, 
where they come from, and actively involved in their community. 

2.3     Youth Service priorities are aligned to the five key elements of the Bradford District 
Youth Offer – as detailed in the table below:
Youth Offer Element 1 – Information, Advice and Guidance(IAG)
Increase the numbers of young people accessing IAG through digital media.
Youth Offer Element 2 – Voice and influence
Increase the numbers of young people participating in Youth Voice opportunities at all 
levels.
Youth Offer Element 3 – Open access/detached 
Deliver a diverse youth offer through working in partnership with the Voluntary & 
Community Sector (VCS) and local communities.
Youth Offer Element 4 - Targeted provision 
Increase the number of specific interventions to address the needs of vulnerable young 
people.
Youth Offer Element 5 - Active citizens and young people’s contribution to community life
Increase the number of young people having a positive impact on their community.

2.4 The Youth Service is managed as one service.  Staff are contracted to the Youth 
Service and are allocated to areas.  

Page 3



3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
3.1     Youth Provision

Over the last 12 months’ youth provision across all six wards has continued to 
respond to the needs of young people. Ward teams have worked with a wide range 
of community partners to ensure that young people have a network of support that 
enables them to engage in positive relationships. This work has taken place 
through a range of delivery methods including; detached, outreach and centre 
based sessions. This approach has enabled Youth Workers to consistently respond 
to issues faced by young people whilst continuing to promote key public health 
messages by offering information, advice and guidance.

In October and November 2020, significant Youth Service resource was used to 
prevent and challenge the seasonal peak in Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) 
associated with Halloween, Mischief Night and Bonfire Night. Youth Workers 
engaged young people in a ‘Consequences’ campaign that highlighted the impact 
of ASB and misuse of fireworks. 

Between January and March 2021 intensive detached work was delivered in all 
wards that specifically supported young people during the third national lockdown. 
Youth Workers sought to map ‘hotspots’ that required additional resources to 
ensure greater community compliance. Between April and June Youth Workers 
offered a menu of support to young people that supported the idea of having limited 
contact with others through the concept of bubbles / small groups. 

Over the summer months Youth Workers offered activities in local parks and green 
spaces that encouraged well-being but started to prepare young people for 
returning to life without restrictions. In addition, Youth Workers also targeted young 
people making the transition between primary and secondary school and offered 
Moving Up sessions that helped build resilience. 

  
3.2 Responding to demand and complexity of need

Over the last 12 months Youth Workers have responded to a significant increase in 
referrals from partner organisations to help address the following issues:

Domestic Abuse – young people report that they have experienced increased 
tension and domestic abuse within their family units.
  
Educational Anxiety – young people report that they are anxious and fearful of the 
learning that they have lost and what this means for their future. 

Isolation – young people report that they have felt lonely and isolated and a 
significant amount of family time is spent in different rooms on individual screens 
and devises. 

Self Harm – young people report that they have used self-harm as a means to 

Page 4



cope with some of the issues that they have experienced.

Our service has remained focused on meeting demand and delivered the following 
support through local youth provision:

Youth Clubs – each ward has a youth club that enables young people to come 
together and socialise through a series of activities and programmes that help 
develop personal and social skills whilst encouraging thought and action on local 
area issues. Youth clubs are an essential component in developing independence 
and reducing dependency on specialist services.  

Peer Support Groups – the Youth Service has developed a series of peer support 
groups that enable young people to come together and support each other for 
issues that are important to them. Many of these sessions have a central activity 
that helps young people to engage and build trust. 

One to One Support – young people are supported by a local Youth Worker who 
will offer a home visit and a series of interventions designed to build trust. Through 
these interventions youth workers will set goals and targets for young people and 
help them assess local support networks. This work helps address complex issues 
such as; Domestic Abuse, Child Sexual Exploitation and Family Breakdown.
 

Volunteering – as young people become older we encourage them to take on 
board more responsibility in the local community. Youth Workers support young 
people to participate in community action projects, helping others and developing 
employability skills through volunteering. 

3.3     Other work targeted at young people with specific needs including vulnerable   
          and at risk.

The Youth Service continues to provide direct support to young people at risk of 
exploitation. Through building trust with their Youth Worker, young people have 
reported feeling less isolated, more connected with their community and safer. 
Bradford South currently runs a number of targeted provisions all of which offer 
young people a safe space to engage in positive activities. This work helps raise 
awareness of issues such as serious organised crime, grooming and county lines. 
Youth Workers work closely with the Breaking the Cycle Team and support low risk 
cases in the local community. 

3.4     Buddy support as part of Youth in Mind 
 

The Youth Service has been commissioned to deliver early interventions to young 
people across the district. This is a collaborative partnership with Bradford District 
Care Trust and Youth in Mind (YiM) which offers help to young people for their 
mental health and well-being and seeks to reduce demand on specialist services.

Over the last year, Bradford South has received over 500 referrals from the Child 
and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS), School Nurses & other 

Page 5



professionals. These referrals are allocated to Youth Workers who act as Buddies 
to young people, their role is to befriend them, support them using the Signs of 
Safety approach and navigate local support networks.

In addition, Youth Workers work closely with all secondary school in Bradford South 
and help identify students who need support for their mental health and well-being. 
Youth Workers support these additional caseload in schools, delivering 1:1 work on 
a weekly basis developing young people’s confidence, self-belief and resilience. 
Youth Workers also support young people in hospital offering interventions that 
promote self-care and connect them to local services that offer crisis support. 

3.5     A partnership approach 

The Youth Service is supported by a wide range of partners in each community. 
Youth Workers work with local partners to understand the needs of the community 
and help build capacity to deliver bespoke projects. These projects help build 
stronger relationships with the local community and increase participation, action 
and ownership on local area issues. 
Within each ward Youth Workers work alongside Ward Officers to map local area 
issues and develop responses. A good example of how this can be seen in the 
weekly Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) Reports that are shared by the Police with the 
area office. These reports allow Youth Workers to identify where ASB is impacting 
on the community. Youth Workers visit the locations, engage the community and 
feedback to ward officers who track and monitor the impact of the interventions. 
Mapping and understanding the root causes of local issues provides an opportunity 
to plan and develop longer term responses that local partners are supported to lead 
on. This enables funding to be secured and additional resources to be invested. 
Examples of these are included in appendix B.  

New Initiates in Development 

3.6     Future Boost Trainees

In October 2021 Bradford South welcomed two new Youth Work Trainees to the 
team. The trainees will be with us for 2 years and will support the development of 
Youth Voice initiatives that ensure young people years old have a greater role in 
shaping service delivery. The trainees will also help identify gaps in provision and 
develop new projects that respond to the needs of young people aged 16-25 years 
old. In addition, we will also support six Sporting Chances trainees in their 
placements within the constituency.

3.7     Post Covid response work (Young Covid Ambassadors Project)

The service has built on and expanded the work developed by our Young Covid 
Ambassadors project. We have created opportunities for a new cohort of Young 
Covid Ambassadors who will help develop a programme of work that focuses on 

Page 6



Covid recovery, intergenerational activity and well-being. We believe that this could 
help aid groups of people to overcome some of the impacts of lockdown and 
isolation. The Ambassadors will help to strengthen public health messages and 
promote community activity through a series of events in each ward.
In late September 2021 six young people from Bradford South were employed as 
Young Covid Recovery Ambassadors (YCRA). The Ambassadors are undertaking 
local Youth Work training to support them in their role and have integrated in to 
local teams including support for students who are anxious about returning to 
school. They work alongside Youth Workers to engage young people and identify 
local area issues. This information is then collated and analysed for patterns and 
trends and then shared with Public Health Bradford. The information collected by 
the YCRA has been integral to responding to local issue and supporting the 
community to recover from the Covid pandemic.

3.8     South Wide Provisions

          Bradford South currently leads on the delivery of 3 area wide projects. These 
sessions are for young people to attend from across Bradford South. The area wide 
sessions are themed to suit young people’s needs, interests and increase our 
Youth Offer.  Information regarding the South Wide provisions can be found in both 
Appendix A and Appendix B.

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL
4.1    The Youth Service base budget remains unchanged for 2021/22. The service will 

continue to fill vacancies and recruit additional staff to fulfil commissioned service 
delivery inc: Youth in Mind, Breaking the Cycles, Young Covid Ambassadors and 
Positive Futures. Some of this commissioned work is geographically specific which 
may mean that we see demand being met with additional Youth Work resources. 

  
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

The implementation of the planned budget for the Youth Service is subject to the 
internal risk management plan of the Council and progress is reported to the Place 
Departmental Management Team.

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL
No issues.

7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
           The Youth Service as part of the Council’s commitment to the District has a 

responsibility to ensure that the service is accessible to all young people and that 
participation in the service reflects this approach.

Page 7



7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
The Youth Service delivery enables local initiatives to be supported, encouraging 
groups and individuals to undertake activities that improve the social, economic and 
environmental well being of their communities.

7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
Greenhouse gas emissions and wider environmental impacts was a consideration of 
the Buildings Review. 

7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
Young people from across Bradford South engaging in weekly sessions and 
specialist provisions are directly and indirectly involved with supporting and 
developing community safety within their local area. Voice and influence is central 
to youth work delivery ensuring young peoples ideas, suggestions and thoughts are 
heard.

The strengthened approach to the devolution of the Youth Service as will allow for: 

 an increased sense of local democracy for both young people and communities
 young people to be more active in democratic, decision-making processes 

alongside their political representatives 
 the voice and influence of young people to remain central, meaningful and 

paramount in identifying and addressing needs and issues in their 
communities 

 the requirements of the localism/devolution agenda to be met effectively and 
efficiently

7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from the recommendations 
below.

7.6 TRADE UNION
All budget proposals are subject to consultation with the Trade Unions.

7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS
The information in this report is related to all wards in the constituency and 
appendix B outlines the Youth Service projects and activities delivered across 
South. 

8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None. 

9. OPTIONS
9.1     That Bradford South Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this  

report.

Page 8



9.2 That Bradford South Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this 
report, with amendments.

9.3 That Bradford South Area Committee decides not to accept the recommendations 
outlined in this report.

10. RECOMMENDATIONS
10.1 That the work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford South Area as detailed 

in this report be welcomed.

11. APPENDICES
11.1 Appendix A: Bradford South Youth Service Baseline Youth Provision

 
11.2   Appendix B: Bradford South – Youth Service Ward Updates 

12.      BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
12.1 Youth Service – Bradford South Area report. Bradford South Area Committee 

Meeting, 25th February 2021.

Page 9



Appendix A

Bradford South Youth Service
Baseline Youth Provision - 2021

TONG WARD
For more information contact Chris McMahon, 07582101456,  chris.mcmahon@bradford.gov.uk 

Day/Time Activity Location Frequency
Monday 4:30-

6.30pm
Targeted Group TFD Centre Weekly

Tuesday 5.30-
8.00pm

Youth Club Holme Wood Weekly

Wednesday 5.30-
8:00pm

Targeted Group TFD Centre Weekly

WYKE WARD
For more information contact Patrick Nyarko, 07582103696, patrick.nyaroko@bradford.gov.uk

Day/Time Activity Location Frequency
Wednesday
 6.00-9.00pm

Targeted Group Delph Hill Centre Weekly

Thursday
 6.00-8.00pm

Youth Club Delph Hill Centre Weekly

Friday 
5:30-8:00pm

Targeted Group Delph Hill Centre Weekly

QUEENSBURY WARD
For more information contact Helena Rhodes, 07582108191, Helena.rhodes@bradford.gov.uk

Day/Time Activity Location Frequency
Mondays 5.30 -

7.30pm
Targeted Group Victoria Hall Weekly

Wednesday 5.30-
8.00pm

Youth Club Victoria Hall Weekly

Thursday 5.30-
7.30pm

Youth Club Victoria Hall Weekly

Page 10



ROYDS WARD
For more information contact Stephen Harrison, 07582101715, stephen.harrison@bradford.gov.uk

Day/Time Activity Location Frequency
Tuesday 

6.00- 8.30pm
Youth Club Buttershaw Youth Centre Weekly

Wednesday 
6.00-8.30pm

Targeted Group Buttershaw Youth Centre Weekly

Thursday 
6.00- 8.30pm

Youth Club Buttershaw Youth Centre Weekly

WIBSEY WARD
For more information contact Tracey Gill, 07582100683, tracey.gill@bradford.gov.uk

Day/Time Activity Location Frequency
Monday 

6.00-8.00pm
Street Club Wibsey/Odsal/Bankfoot Weekly

Tuesday
 7.00-8.30pm

Youth Club Online Weekly

Wednesday 
6.00-8.30pm

Detached Wibsey/Odsal/Bankfoot Weekly

GREAT HORTON WARD
For more information contact Zwelani Mayo 07582107053, zwelani.mayo@bradford.gov.uk

Day/Time Activity Location Frequency
Monday 

6.00-8.00pm
Youth Club Great Horton Weekly

Wednesday
 6.00-8.00pm

Target Group Scholemoor Weekly

Thursday 
6.00-8.00pm

Youth Club Great Horton Weekly

Bradford South Constituency Wide
For more information contact Anthony Casson, 07582100684, anthony.casson@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time Activity Location Frequency

Tuesday 
4.00-6.00pm

Peer Support Session Buttershaw Youth Centre Weekly

Thursday 
4.00-6.00pm

Peer Support Session Park Ave FC Weekly

Page 11



Friday 
5.00 -8.00pm

Peer Support Session TFD Youth Centre Weekly

The above table provides an overview of the work that is delivered in secondary schools in 
Bradford South. Each youth worker will hold an average case load of 12 young people who they 
provide one to one support to over a half-term. This enables youth workers to work with a large 
number of young people over the course of a school year. The impact of these early interventions 
helps reduce exclusions and maintain attendance whilst also reducing the demand on specialist 
services. The support received is unique to each individual but often focuses on emotional well 
being, anxiety and low self esteem. 

The impact of this ‘school based support’ has been the growth of ‘community based’ peer support 
groups across the constituency. These groups offer young people the opportunity to share the ‘self 
care skills’ that they have learnt with others. We commonly refer to these groups as Youth in Mind 
– Peer Support groups. 

SCHOOLS WORK 
For more information contact Anthony Casson, 07582100684, anthony.casson@bradford.gov.uk

Day Activity Location Frequency Target group

Monday & 
Tuesday

1:1 Support Tong Weekly YIM

Wednesday 
& Thursday

1:1 Support BBEC Weekly YIM

Friday 1:1 Support Appleton Weekly YIM

Tuesday & 
Thursday

1:1 Support Forsters Weekly YIM

Monday 1:1 Support Queensbury Weekly YIM

Thursdays & 
Friday

1:1 Support Coop Grange Weekly YIM

Tuesday 1:1 Support Dixons City Weekly YIM

Wednesday 1:1 Support Dixons Kings Weekly YIM

Page 12



Appendix B

Bradford South – Youth Service Ward Updates:

Great Horton 

Youth workers have worked closely with local community partners to address a range of local 
issues inc; Anti Social Behaviour (ASB). Through a targeted approach we have built trust with the 
community and identified cohorts of young people who need to be supported. Through sustained 
contact and interaction with the targeted groups we have helped to reducing levels of anti-social 
behaviour on Beldon Road (reduced incidents reported on Beldon Road noted by multi-agency 
meetings), Coppice Wood Grove (residents acknowledging the work done by the service), Wyvern 
Close continues to be supported by our engagement with young people around the area. Youth 
Workers remain concerned for the root causes of ASB including SOC. We continue to work with 
the Breaking the Cycles team to map issues and identify responses.

Youth Workers have continued to build successful community partnerships that provide young 
people with an opportunity to engage in new activities that promote health and well-being. As a 
result of our partnership with the Capital of Cycling more young people have participated in an 
online project learning how to recycle bikes. The components are delivered to young people who 
get to keep the bikes after they have been built. The project aims to increase recycling and reduce 
pollution. 

Youth Workers work in partnership with Scholemoor Beacon to deliver a range of projects and 
activities. As a result of engaging young people in these sessions many have be diverted away 
from ASB. In addition, we have also worked together to meet the needs of vulnerable young 
people identified as needing personal, social and emotional support. Our partnership with the 
Youth Association has resulted in more visibility of Youth Workers in and around Great Horton 
Village Hall, increasing the interaction levels with young people. 

Queensbury 

Youth Workers continue to work in partnership with QCP to support young people to access a 
wider range of provision in the local area. A good example of this is illustrated in the work delivered 
over the summer. Working with QCP as our main partner enabled us to draw down additional 
funding from HAF to increase the reach to children age 7-19yrs and target those on FSM. This 
allowed us to include activity such as dance and karate delivered by the professionals involved 
free of charge and QCP provided lunch and refreshments for all participants

Young people from across the area came together to build relationships, keep active, maintain 
positive engagement in the summer including sports, arts, cooking, teamwork, confidence building 
and having fun in the summer

Over 50 children and young people attended the provision and every child participated for free, we 
were able to give trial sessions at clubs and activities in the area with the hope they may engage 
after summer especially in the sports and activities available weekly

After this the youth sessions have seen an increase in new members and young people from the 
area have engaged with youth workers. Whilst, youth workers have also highlighted some students 
from the summer programme who may need additional support to succeed in school and offered to 
follow this up in Tic Tac session. We hope to continue to build on this partnership with additional 
support from our Young Covid Recovery Ambassadors. 

Page 13



Royds 

Youth Workers have continued to support the development of the Shoulder to Shoulder 
partnership which helps bring together a wide range of community partners. The partnership 
provides an opportunity to share information and agree actions that increase opportunities for 
young people to use Buttershaw Youth Centre and other local projects. For example; over the 
summer young people had the opportunity to participate community action projects with Stepping 
Stones that helped improve the green space around the centre.

Youth Workers continue to work with Sandale to provide additional support through after school 
sessions that target young people that require support to help improve their mental health. Youth 
Workers are also developing a new project to provide young people with a safe space to explore 
personal identity. This project further extends the number of specialist groups run by the youth 
service and local partners.

Youth Workers support Big Joe’s Boxing Academy to deliver a number of sessions that encourage 
young people to participate in non-contact boxing club. The club promotes the value of health, 
fitness and nutrition as well as looking at how to improve mental health. This is a very popular club 
that is currently oversubscribed.

Tong 

Prior to summer 2021 the team worked to detail the support on offer to young people moving on to 
the high schools in the local area. Support on the sessions were offered to both primary schools 
and to the high schools where the team have been working with over recent years. Liaising with 
the primary schools we identified a number of young people who required the support to transition 
to high school and with this completed several home visits, giving an outline of the plan for parents 
going into the summer. To build this relationship early on helps to make young people feel 
welcomed and reduces the anxieties that some young people have about meeting new people or, 
going to new places. We replicated this approach with the high schools we work with, as we often 
see the transition impacts the high schools differently, as they have to put things in place for 
continuous support in their school. We highlighted siblings, who had concerns about brothesr and 
sisters coming to the school, these were identified through our one to one support and then fed 
back into our well-being leads for further discussion. In previous years we have been into the 
primary schools to highlight this work and running the pilot scheme for moving up in Holme wood 
we have found this invaluable. Unfortunately, due to Covid we had not been able to follow this 
previously successful model. We have however, developed a programme of support for the 
primary schools regarding transition and well-being that will take place in the new year, which in 
turn will help further develop the transitional experiences of years 6 to 7.

Support for young people again has been invaluable for the readiness of those moving into year 7 
in a new school. Throughout the summer programme we have offered group sessions that have 
been aimed at building young people’s confidence and answering questions that help to reduce 
some of those felt anxieties. 

The team have throughout the summer supported young people into some of the other nurturing 
sessions that happen in the local area, these have included arts, sports and well-being sessions. 
This is in the hope that whilst the team are still supporting young people in a school setting there is 
a sense of community connectivity for further support in their local area.

We have a large number of young people who came to the project relaying to staff how much they 
have valued the sessions at the centre. One young person has stated that they “don’t know where 

Page 14



they would be if it wasn’t for the sessions”. The brilliant thing about the project over the summer is 
that it doesn’t just last the summer it continues to support as long as it is needed in one way or 
another. Whether this is a continuation of the support from our sessions or whether it is connected 
into the vast array of partners we have developed to support of vision of purpose and belonging. In 
either case we support young people to thrive both in and out of the school environment. 

Partnership work is a continued process for the work we do at the TFD and realise that if we are to 
be a successful project having the partners that share our thoughts and want to have a long term 
visions are integral. At the centre we have a number of projects that have helped support young 
people, Dance united are one of these projects we have supported over the summer period. 
Dance united at the TFD centre have completed a week intensive dance and arts project utilising 
the support of the centre to deliver to young people, the community based arts session was 
collaboration between Dance united, The Valley Project and the Youth Service. 

The TFD centre hosted another arts project developed by a local person the team have supported 
three days of arts action for the community. The United Arts project aimed to support families to 
come together to take part in the arts, with activities on canvass to spray painting the project 
encompassed a range of arts activities for all the family. 

Continuing the theme of the arts, we have helped to develop a project in the community around 
poetry. Kirsty Taylor a local celebrity, worked on a project named front room poetry, with many 
young people given the floor to express in spoken word important issues in their life. This was set 
up in the middle of the football field on Holme Wood, bringing something different to an area that 
perhaps have not welcomed such an experience previously. 

Over the summer we have worked in partnership with Clarion housing to develop a sports project 
out of the TFD and this culminated in the launch of the project happening at the end of the summer 
programme. This kick starts a project that will bring a variety of activities to the centre to support 
young people in being healthy and active. 

Outloud is a project that we as a service have help build capacity to support the ongoing need for 
interventions around health and well-being. Over the summer period, supported by the BD4 
Community partnership we hosted a mental health first aid course for young people from our Youth 
in Mind sessions. Keen to help develop peer support we developed the event to add value to our 
ever increasing list of young people in need of social and emotional support. The outcome of which 
will be that they will be equipped to help others identify their own wellness and understanding of 
what keeps them well.

One of our other great developments around partnership work, has been the sessions we have 
developed with the STEMM department at Bradford university. Linking in with the project we have 
successful brought Lego robotics to the centre and developed skills on computing and coding. Our 
aim in the summer was to develop a CSI session where young people would be integral to a “who 
dunnit” scenario, with all the crime scene lab being brought to the TFD centre. Unfortunately, due 
to Covid, and their team being unwell, this did not take place but will in the next holidays.  
  
We place real value on the partnerships we have developed and enhanced over the summer 
period and they will form strong bonds to continue the community support in the future. We always 
pride ourselves on the vast array of sessions that young people can access and this can only be 
achieved with the input and development of local partners.

Over the summer period we continued our previous efforts to supporting young people and the 
community through our detached programme. Sessions have taken place weekly liaising with the 
police, the wardens and ward officers to highlight any incidences of anti social behaviour. We have 
generally engaged young people in areas of concern such as local shopping parades and areas of 

Page 15



high public use. Utilising our knowledge and relationships with the groups we have often being 
able to support groups of young people to move to areas where they are perceived to cause less 
issues including parks and the field at the TFD. Here we have been able to organise small games.

We have had only a small amount of the usual anti-social behaviour reported in these places and 
the success of the reduction is the knowledge and relationships of the youth service. Working in 
the community, working in the local schools and knowledge and relationships with the families 
have been key to this reduction.

Wibsey 

Youth Workers have started to develop a partnership with Park Ave in the Community. It is hoped 
that this will enable more young people to use the local facilities at the club and access additional 
programmes of support run by the club. Youth Workers hope that this will provide an opportunity to 
support the club with links to volunteering, training and employment. 

Over the last year our youth work team have seen a significant increase in the number of 
vulnerable young people that access our universal provision. A number of these young people 
have needed to be supported on a one to one basis in order to help with issues such as anger, low 
self esteem and self harm. As a result Youth workers have worked closely with services such as 
Children’s Social Care, Early Help and the Police to ensure that young people are safe and 
families are supported. 

In response to the increased levels of vulnerability, the youth work team delivered a Summer 
Transition Programme that worked with local schools to target vulnerable young people in year 6. 
Over the summer these young people were supported through positive activities that provided 
them with an opportunity to feel more confident about starting secondary school. These young 
people will continue to be supported over the next year and it is hoped that this will reduce the risk 
of exclusion and the need for specialist support. 

Wyke 

Youth Workers have continued to build strong community relationships with local partners, 
businesses and families. Our relationship with Appleton Academy enables us to build relationships 
with a wide range of young people whilst also supporting those who are more vulnerable. Our 
approach in school sees us offering 1 to 1 support, building trust and breaking down isolation. An 
impact of the work has seen the development on a local peer support session. 

During the summer Youth Workers secured the use of two facilities that had been closed during 
the pandemic, allowing us to run regular weekly sessions at both Delph Hill and at Bradford Park 
Avenue. Both of the venues have enabled the Youth Service to run sessions in a safe environment 
and have allowed sessions to run no matter what the weather. 

Over the summer period Bradford Park Ave ran a summer programme which we were able to 
signpost families too which provided not only activities but also provided meals, something that 
some families struggle with during the holidays. 

Youth Workers have also worked closely with our partners Capital of Cycling, this has not only 
allowed young people to gain new skills but has enabled social mobility for some young people by 
providing them with bikes so they can access sessions.

Page 16



Report of the Strategic Director of the Department of 
Place to the meeting of Bradford South Area Committee 
to be held on 30th September 2021

I

Subject:  

LOCALITY WORKING REVIEW: BRADFORD SOUTH APPROACH AND CREATING A 
LOCALITIES PLAN FOR THE AREA. 

Summary statement:

The Council with partners is reviewing our approach to Locality Working.  The report 
outlines 1) the District wide approach emerging from the Review, 2) considers the data 
available to support the process and 3) presents some options on how to develop the 
approach in Bradford South.    

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY:

The implementation of the Localities Review in Bradford South will include an Engagement 
Plan which will set out how the voices of all communities in Bradford South are heard.  
This will include specific targeting, to ensure the views of minority groups who are seldom 
heard are engaged in the process.  

Jason Longhurst, Strategic Director of 
Place

Portfolio:  

Safer and Stronger Communities

Report Contact:  Mick Charlton, Bradford 
South Coordinator 
Phone: (01274) 431155
E-mail: mick.charlton@bradford.gov.uk

 Overview & Scrutiny Area: 

Corporate

Page 17

Agenda Item 7/



1. SUMMARY

The Council with partners is reviewing our approach to Locality Working.  The 
report outlines 1) the District wide approach emerging from the Review, 2) 
considers the data available to support the process and 3) presents some options 
on how to develop the approach in Bradford South.     

2. BACKGROUND

Ian Day, Assistant Director Neighbourhood and Customer Services, briefed 
Councillors in Bradford South on Thursday 2nd September on the Locality Review.  
He explained: 

The vision for the Locality Working Review is:
to build safe, strong and active localities where citizens and local leaders are 
empowered to work alongside public agencies and partners to address local needs 
and issues. Working collaboratively and creatively, they utilise local assets, 
resources and opportunities to enhance community capacity and tackle inequalities. 
People are at the heart of service design and delivery, and experience coordinated 
support within their localities and only need to tell their story once. A stronger focus 
on prevention and early help promotes better outcomes for local people and helps 
reduce the need for statutory interventions wherever possible.

To achieve the vision the project advocates a stronger role for Bradford Council and 
its partners as a leader and place shaper, aligning delivery and resources, renewing 
emphasis on the role of Area Committees and supporting local councillors in their 
capacity as democratic champions.  

This work has commenced with ‘trials’ at Keighley and Bradford West 
constituencies, where lessons learned will be incorporated as part of a test and 
learn process, prior to a Council roll out from April 2022 across all five 
constituencies. 
 
The project will see the strengthening of resource and capability within the 
Neighbourhood’s Service, including the recruitment of 15 fte Assistant Ward 
Officers and five Stronger Communities ‘Engagement Officers’ and broadening the 
role and influence of Area Coordinators as convenors of place. 

This work is underpinned by developing arrangements for a Council-wide locality 
approach to prevention and early help that promotes collaboration between Council 
colleagues (and then with wider partners) to better support individuals, families and 
communities across the District. 

The Strengthening Locality Working project is broadly divided into three phases of 
development, test and learn, and the wider rollout of the locality working approach. 
The development phase commenced in January 2021 and has now moved into the 
test and learn phase through to Spring/ Summer 2021. The wider rollout of the 
locality working approach will commence in Autumn 2021 through to 
Spring/Summer 2022, with ‘test and learn’ becoming an integral aspect of the 
approach.

Page 18



Work is well underway with the approach being trialled in Keighley and Bradford 
West. An ABCD (Asset Based Community Development) training session has been 
delivered for people involved in the priority setting work at both constituencies and 
‘area conference’ meetings are in place to consider the date and emerging priorities 
that will form the basis of the plan. Further training and development sessions are 
being planned and invitations will be sent to partner organisations.
Prevention and early help underpin the locality working approach. When we talk 
about prevention, we mean preventing or delaying problems from arising in the 
first place so that everyone across the Bradford District – whatever locality they 
come from – can live a long, healthy, and full life. In turn, Early help is about 
tackling problems head-on when they emerge, intervening early before problems 
escalate. 
 
At the heart of both Prevention and Early Help is a constant focus on what’s 
strong, not what’s wrong. We work closely with localities to make the most of 
their assets, resources and opportunities, empowering citizens and local leaders to 
work alongside public agencies and partners to address local needs in a 
collaborative and creative way.

Delivered well, the project will:

• Increase organisational resilience through a common understanding and 
approach to locality working

• Evidence outcomes delivered against the Council and District plan priorities
• Promote community capacity and improve outcomes to be delivered for 

communities
• Reduce inequalities and improve access to support for individuals and 

communities
• Allow individuals and communities to access multi-disciplinary early help that 

ultimately prevents/reduces/delays the need for statutory services

The work is currently focussing on the activities that take place within the Council. 
However, regular engagement and meetings are in place with colleagues from ‘Health’ 
to ensure that the plans being developed in both organisations align. 

Police arrangements are already coterminous with the Neighbourhood Service and 
opportunities to further strengthen this approach, including the approach to responding 
to domestic abuse and sexual violence can/should be explored. 

Some initial discussion has also taken place with the InCommunities management 
team and agreement has been reached on trailing more collaborative approaches to 
working in Holme Wood.

Page 19



The complexities of designing coterminous solutions between geographically different 
areas (wards and community partnerships) whilst avoiding duplication is the greatest 
issue to overcome. Mapping work and governance discussions are ongoing to work 
through options and ensure that there is coherence and efficiency in future delivery 
models. These discussions are evidencing clear opportunities for alignment of the 
emerging approach that is being developed within the CCG (ICS) through the 
community partnerships with the proposals in the paper. Eleven of the 12 community 
partnerships all have 75% or more of patients who live within a single parliamentary 
constituency. Strong leadership and good working relationships will be critical to the 
success of aligning approaches.

3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

Data to shape Area Planning.  

The Localities Review Steering Group is considering the development of statistical 
datasets to support the Localities planning process.  Currently the data that has been 
available to support Areas in developing their plans is included in the two appendices to 
this report.  These are 

Appendix 1 is the data provided to the two pilots (see below) to set priorities. These were 
created by a consultancy who are no longer engaged in this workstream.  

Appendix 2 is a summary of some of the data available as part of the Ward Assessments 
that have been used for a number of years to develop Ward Plans.  Ward Assessments 
are designed as part of an IT data display package called PowerBi.  Within this package it 
is possible to compared statistics with the 30 Wards in the District, the 5 Areas and also 
view trends within Wards to understand if the issue is improving or deteriorating.  

There are plans at the District level to enhance this dataset and therefore in the spring the 
Area is likely to have a broader set of data to work with.  The available statistical data 
provides some areas that require further investigation but does not adequately enable a 
detailed Area plan to be informed without further insight. 

Potential approaches to developing a localities plan for Bradford South

 Bradford South Area Committee is being asked to determine which approach to 
adopt from the choice of:

1. Keighley Pilot
2. Bradford West Pilot
3. Develop our own the Bradford South approach

 
To enable the committee to decide on the appropriate option for Bradford South the 
available data is presented in Appendix 1 of this report.

Page 20



Option 1: Following the Keighley pilot

1.  The process in Keighley involved:

A day long Priority Setting Workshop was held online (via Zoom) involving members of 
the Keighley Area Community Partnership. This is a partnership that was established in 
March of this year which brought together the Keighley Area Leadership Team and the 
Airedale Community Partnership. It is made up of representatives from a wide range of 
statutory, voluntary, community and faith sector organisations that work across the 
Keighley Constituency. For the Workshop all 18 District Cllrs were also invited to attend 
(the Area Chair is the only elected representative member of the Partnership). 
Consultants from Impower facilitated the Workshop. 

2. Setting the Area priorities in Keighley (ie data, consultation, view of partners, 
view of Councillors)

The approach used by Impower to gather thoughts and ideas from those present at the 
Workshop regarding what the priorities for the Area Plan might look like was informed 
by the 6 themes of the Council Plan, a data profile put together by Impower and then 
the views, knowledge and experience of those present. An initial draft set of priorities 
was produced at the end of the Workshop, but these will now be further developed at 
future Partnership meetings.

3. The downsides to the approach in Keighley?

The Workshop didn’t involve people living in the diverse neighbourhoods and 
communities of interest in the Keighley Area, so their views, insights and what matters 
to them wasn’t included.

Option 2: Following the Bradford West pilot

1.  The process in Bradford West involved

In consultation with Area chair, priority was given to introduce the process and 
concept to Elected members first, a bespoke workshop was arranged at Cartwright 
Hall, the session was jointly run by IMpower consultants and the Area Co-ordinator, 
other staff from the AC office were in attendance and facilitated small group 
discussions, the workshops began with insights into the theory and application of 
behaviour insights and ABCD, this led to a discussion on how this concept would be 
interpreted and used by anyone working in Communities. The majority of the 
workshop looked and explored the experience of participants when working with 
local communities.

A second full day workshop was held for Partners across the Local authority 
system, introducing locality working and concepts of Behaviour change and ABCD 
as described above. A third workshop is planned to included VCS and health 
partners including the Community Partnerships.

Page 21



2. Setting the Area Priorities in Bradford West (ie data, consultation, view of 
partners, view of Councillors) the workshops were designed to include data sets 
from a variety of sources reflecting the Council priority areas, the identified priorities 
will not solely focus on what data tells us,  a blended approach will be used that 
equally takes into account what communities and partners tell us of their 
experiences, the data will add to the understanding of what our communities are 
experiencing. The workshops, the listening and conversational processes will be 
taking place across the area will go towards the development of the Area and ward 
plans. The establishment of an Area partnership will include actions that can be 
addresses from area rather than individual ward perspective. the governance will 
remain with the Area committee.

3. Downsides of the Bradford West approach 

The process is not yet complete, there is work to be done and conversations to be 
had at street and neighbourhood level, the balance has to be right on what is 
considered to be neighbourhood actions or area wide responses, these can deliver 
efficiencies by working collaboratively across neighbourhoods and wards. The key 
is to have the right partners around the table with the capacity, desire and resource 
to work collaboratively. There was a recognition that not all the partners that work 
with the Area office, work with each other independently, to make localities work 
successful there has to be recognition that there has to be relationships built across 
the broad spectrum.  
Lesson learnt: in an era of post covid, in all settings people wanted to freely talk and 
listen to each other, going forward it is important to give partners the opportunity to 
reconnect with each other the Area Partnerships should meet face to face and 
activity encourage open networking. We need to be less rigid in our workshops an 
allow for natural conversation.

Option 3: Proposed Bradford South approach

Spend the next 6 months listening and learning from communities and partners in 
Bradford South.  The information collected from communities and partners would then 
be used to create community insights on how to develop the Localities Approach in the 
Area.  This would include:

a. Listening to communities and find out from them what they feel is going well and 
what needs to be done better and their ideas on what could be done better.

i. The South team would target communities/ groups to ensure wide 
inclusion of voices including:  Different neighbourhoods within the 
Area, children, young people, older people, carers, men, women, 
LGBTQ people, people with disabilities etc.

ii. Further suggestions of other groups to target our engagement with 
including any faith and ethnicity groups are welcomed  

b. Discussing with partners how they believe joint and partnership working could be 

Page 22



improved

c.   Collating some case studies on where Locality approaches are already working 
well in Bradford South and assess why these are working well and what others can 
learn from these examples.

d)  Collate some case studies on projects that haven’t achieved the outcomes that 
were intended and learn from these how we can improve our approach.  

After the listening and learning phase

a) Hold an Area Event that would include representation from Ward Councillors, 
Offices, Community Organisations, Residents and use this to consider the 
highlights of the learning phase. 

b) At the event use the following three questions to set the priorities for action:

1. What communities can and do well for themselves

2. What communities can do for themselves with the right sort of support

3. What services need provide

These three key questions have been used where community strengths approach to 
working with their communities have been developed.

c) Form an Area plan based on the insights gained from the engagement with 
Bradford South’s communities and the Area Event. This plan will set out how the 
Council and partners are going to support communities to deliver better outcomes.  

The Area Plan will include:
 

i. Recognising and celebrating what communities are already doing for 
themselves and their wider strengths.

ii. Identify key areas where communities require support to achieve their 
desires and aspirations

iii. Identify where services need to focus their delivery to meet Area 
expectations 

If this third option is chosen by the Area Committee the Area Office will work on an 
engagement work plan that will cover the next 6 months that will set out how everyone will 
have opportunities to get involved in meaningful ways.

4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

 Within the scope of the overall Review of Localities working.  The budget for the 

Page 23



three new Assistant Ward Officers in Bradford South and the contribution of the 
Stronger Communities team are covered by increases to the Neighbourhood 
Service’s base budget for 2021-2 onwards.  

5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
 

A key purpose of Locality working is to reduce the demand on services.

6. LEGAL APPRAISAL

 No known legal implications beyond those of the overall Localities Review.  

7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

 No known sustainability issues.  It is expected that the Area plan would increase 
sustainability as key driver.

7.2 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS

 Locality approaches should reduce travel

7.3 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

 Community Safety issues will be addressed within the Localities Plan  

7.4 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

 No known issues related to Human Rights

7.5 TRADE UNION

 Issues related to the District wide Review of Localities working.  

7.6 WARD IMPLICATIONS

 There will be positive implications for all Wards in Bradford South if the Localities 
Review achieves its objectives

7.7 AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS
(for reports to Area Committees only)

 The new plan will replace the existing Area Committee Action Plan

Page 24



7.8 IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING

No known implications 

7.9 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT

No known implications

8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS

 ‘None’. 

9. OPTIONS

 See 3.1 for three options  
  

10. RECOMMENDATIONS

 1. That the committee notes the Localities Review and implications for Bradford 
South Area Committee

 2. That the Committee chooses one of the three approaches to develop a localities 
plan for Bradford South

 3. That the Area Coordinator is asked to lead on the approach and develop an 
engagement plan, keep Councillors updated on progress and report back progress 
to the committee in March 2022

11. APPENDICES

Appendix 1:  Bradford South Statistical data to support Localities Planning 

Appendix 2:  Data taken from Ward Assessments.  

12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

No background documents

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
Bradford South area profile 

1

P
age 27



Bradford South area profile – population characteristics

2

Life expectancy at birth, three year averages 2017-2019

Bradford South population, 2019

106,524
3.4% increase since 2014

P
age 28



3

Rural residents
Rural areas, sparsely populated, above average employment in agriculture, higher number owning multiple cars, an older married population, a high 
provision of unpaid care and an above average number of people living in communal establishments.

Cosmopolitans
Residing in densely populated urban areas, high ethnic integration, high numbers of single young adults without children including students, high 
public transport use, above average qualification levels

Ethnicity central
Concentrated in Inner London and other large cities, high ethnic diversity, high proportion of rented accommodation, high proportion of people living 
in flats, low car ownership. 

Multicultural 
metropolitans

Concentrated in larger urban conurbations in the transitional areas between urban centres and suburbia, high proportion of BME groups, high 
proportion of families.

Urbanites Predominantly in urban areas with high concentrations in southern England. More likely to live in either flats or terraces that are privately rented. 

Suburbanites
Located on the outskirts, in areas with high owner occupation, high numbers of detached houses, low unemployment, high qualifications and high 
car ownership.

Constrained city 
dwellers

Higher proportion of older people, households are more likely to live in flats and to rent their accommodation, and there is a higher prevalence of 
overcrowding, higher proportion of people in poor health, lower qualification levels and high unemployment

Hard-pressed 
living

Mostly on the fringe of the UK's urban areas, particularly in Wales and the North of England. High levels of people in terraced accommodation, high 
unemployment, low ethnic diversity, high levels of people employed in manufacturing

Bradford South area profile – Classification of neighbourhoods
The information on this page looks at the characteristics of defined using the Output Area Classification (OAC). OAC classifies every area in the country 

based on a set of socio-demographic characteristics, to provide a profile of areas to identify similarities between neighbourhoods.

P
age 29



Bradford South area profile – Better skills, more good jobs and a growing economy

4

All figures are a % of the relevant population, those aged 16-64 unless started otherwise

P
age 30



5

Bradford South area profile – Better skills, more good jobs and a growing economy

Largest employment sectors (Census 2011)

Retail

Health & Social work

Manufacturing

P
age 31



Bradford South area profile – Decent homes

6

P
age 32



Bradford South area profile – Good start, great schools

7

P
age 33



Bradford South area profile – Better health, better lives

8

P
age 34



9

Bradford South area profile – Better health, better lives

The index of ‘Access to Health Assets and Hazards’ (AHAH) is a multidimensional index produced by the CDRC that measures how ‘healthy’ 
neighbourhoods are by looking at accessibility and geographical determinants of health. The retail environment and health services domains look at:
• Retail environment: access to fast food outlets, pubs, off-licences, tobacconists, gambling outlets
• Health services: access to GPs, hospitals, pharmacies, dentists, leisure services
A higher score indicates a poorer health-related environment.

P
age 35



10

Bradford South area profile – Better health, better lives

P
age 36



Bradford South area profile – Safe, strong and active communities

11

All figures are reported crimes between March 2020 and February 2021  per 1,000 population, unless stated otherwise

All crimes, Mar 2020 – Feb 2021

Bradford South 156.6 West Yorkshire 132.0

P
age 37



Bradford South area profile – Safe, strong and active communities

12

The Community Dynamics scores have been developed by 
Social Life with the aim of quantifying how people feel about 
the area they live in by modelling responses from the annual 
Community Life Survey and Understanding Society Survey to 
Output Areas

Positive values represent greater belonging/relationship 
strength/satisfaction than the national average. Negative 
figures represent less belonging/relationship 
strength/satisfaction than the national average.

Please note that these indicators have been created by combining the survey 
responses of samples of the population and modelling these to Output Areas 
by linking survey sample demographics to the demographics of Output Areas. 
As a result, many implicit assumptions are built into the data which will not 
hold for all areas. The values presented here offer an indication of community 
belonging, strength and satisfaction rather than an absolute measure.

With local area as 
a place to live

Belonging

Local social 
relationships

P
age 38



Bradford South area profile – A sustainable district

13

The index of ‘Access to Health Assets and Hazards’ (AHAH) is a multidimensional index produced by the CDRC that measures how ‘healthy’ 
neighbourhoods are by looking at accessibility and geographical determinants of health. The physical environment and air quality domains look at:
• Physical environment: access to Blue Spaces, Green Spaces - Active, Green Spaces – Passive (total green space areas available to each postcode 

in a range of a 900-metre buffer prior to creating LSOA averages),
• Air Quality: three air pollutants (Nitrogen Dioxide, Particulate Matter 10 and Sulphur Dioxide).
A higher score indicates a poorer health-related environment.

P
age 39



Bradford South area profile – A sustainable district

14

About the data
• Majority of the data is drawn from publicly available data sets (all data excluding the fly tipping data which is from Bradford Council reporting).
• Some data is only available at Ward level from the 2011 Census, please use this data to understand trends and not for exact figures due to its age.
• This is far from an exhaustive set of data, this is to help us understand the Constituencies and Wards to support the identification of priorities for 

the areas. Further data sets will be identified following this to support delivery of the priorities.

P
age 40



Appendix 2 – Data from ward assessments 

Crime 

Income, Skills & Housing - All Claimants

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

September 2016

September 2017

September 2018

September 2019

November 2020

Income, Skills & Housing - Claimants 18-24

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

September 2016

September 2017

September 2018

September 2019

November 2020

Income, Skills & Housing - JSA Claimants

Page 41



Appendix 2 – Data from ward assessments 

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

September 2016

September 2017

September 2018

September 2019

November 2020

Income, Skills & Housing - Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD)

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2015

2019

Health - Life Expectancy (Females)

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
76.0

77.0

78.0

79.0

80.0

81.0

82.0

83.0

84.0

85.0

2012-14

2013-15

2014-16

2015-17

2016-18

2017-19

Health - Life Expectancy (Males)

Page 42



Appendix 2 – Data from ward assessments 

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
70.0

72.0

74.0

76.0

78.0

80.0

82.0

2012-14

2013-15

2014-16

2015-17

2016-18

2017-19

Crime - Violence and sexual offences

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

Yr to 31st Oct 2019

Yr to 31st Oct 2020

Crime - Vehicle crime

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

Yr to 31st Oct 2019

Yr to 31st Oct 2020

Crime – Robbery

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Yr to 31st Oct 2019

Yr to 31st Oct 2020

Crime - Anti-social behaviour

Page 43



Appendix 2 – Data from ward assessments 

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

Yr to 31st Oct 2019

Yr to 31st Oct 2020

Crime – Burglary

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

Yr to 31st Oct 2019

Yr to 31st Oct 2020

Refuse / Cleansing - Fly Tipping 

Great 
Horto

n

Queensb
ury

Royd
s

Tong

Wibsey
Wyk

e
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Yr to 31st Mar 2017

Yr to 31st Mar 2018

Yr to 31st Mar 2019

Participation - Voter Turnout

Page 44



Appendix 2 – Data from ward assessments 

Great Horton Queensbury Royds Tong Wibsey Wyke
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

01/05/2018

02/05/2019

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 YOUTH SERVICE UPDATE - BRADFORD SOUTH
	7 LOCALITY WORKING REVIEW: BRADFORD SOUTH APPROACH AND CREATING A LOCALITIES PLAN FOR THE AREA
	Doc I Appendix 1
	�����Appendix 1�Bradford South area profile 
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14

	Doc I Appendix 2




